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FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,
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GLOBAL-AMERIKASH, = -
AMERIKHEALTH, and =)
INSTANT WAY, | o

ALBERTO SALAMA,

INSTANT WAY CORPORATION, and

GERMAN ESPITIA,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF
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preliminary and permanent injunctive relief, rescission of contracts and restitution,

diseorgement of ill-gotten gains. and other equitable relief against Defendants for

engaging in unfair or deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC

Act 151LS C_8 45(a). for eneaginein violations of the FTC’s Telemarketine Sales Rule




U.S.C. §§ SmB(b), 57b and 6105(b).

Defendant Remote Response Corporation (“‘Remote Response”) is a Florida corporation
with its principal office or place of business in Miami, Florida. At all times relevant to
this complaint, acting individually or in concert with others, Remote Response, also
doing business as Amerikash, Global-Amerikash, Instant Way, or Amerikhealth, has
provided telemarketing, sales, customer service, and other administrative and marketing

services that direct, control, assist or facilitate the acts or practices set forth in this
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Defendant Alberto Sa Iama (“Salama ") 1s the presiaem o! Remote Response. At all times

relevant to this complaint, acting individually or in concert with others, he has
formulated, directed, controlled, had the authority to control, or participated in the acts
and practices set forth in this complaint. His principal office or place of business is the
same as that of Remote Response. Salama resides in and transacts or has transacted
business in this district.

Defendant Instant Way Corporation (“Instant Way”) is a Florida corporation with its
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all times relevant to this complaint, acting individually or in concert with others, he has
formulated, directed, controlled, had the authority to control, or participated in the acts
and practices set forth in this complaint. His principal office or place of business is the
same as that of Instant Way. Espitia resides in and transacts or has transacted business in

this district.

COMMERCE

2 acts and neactices of Defendants alleoed in this comnlaint ha en in Or affecting

commerce, as “commerce’ is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44.
DEFENDANTS’ COURSE OF CONDUCT

10. Since at least March 2004 and continuing thereafter, Remote Response, Salama, Instant
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telemarketed, marketed, offered to sell, or sold a plastic card that the Defendants have
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coupons for airline travel or a 3-day vacation; a reloadable Amerikash ATM card, pre-
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qualified, Defendants’ telemarketers congratulate consumers and tell them that they have

qualified for the 0% interest and $2,500 limit. Then, the telemarketers represent that to

da____3 SRS BV v W =y P

[

payment ranging between $138 and $200. To mitigate the high fee, Defendants’
telemarketers generally tell consumers that they will receive the equivalent of
approximately $125 in the form of $20 on the ATM card, $5 on the phone card, and $100

worth of airline ticket discount coupons or a free 3-day vacation.

15. Once consumers authorize payment, Defendants’ telemarketers sometimes tell consumers

they are being transferred to a “recorded vertfication system.” The verification process is
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consumers used to purchase the MasterCard. The computer voice or telemarketer
typically completes the “verification” process by giving consumers a “‘confirmation
number” for the transaction, providing Defendants’ customer service telephone number,
and telling consumers to *“please use the card wisely.”

Following the “verification” process, Defendants cause debits and charges to be
transmitted to consumers’ bank accounts and credit card accounts. Defendants typically
debit consumers’ bank accounts and charge consumers’ credit cards for the MasterCard
immediately after the initial sales call. In numerous instances, however, consumers do
not receive a MasterCard. In some instances, they receive only some or none of the
“free” products Defendants promised would be included with the MasterCard. Of those
consumers who do receive some of the “free items,” many indicate that the products do
not work.

Some consumers receive an application form for a MasterCard (variously described as

“Formulario Para Procesar Su Tarjeta MasterCard’or “Formulario Para Envio De Su
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when they do not receive a MasterCard. When consumers call, Defendants routinely have
consumers leave messages, but do not return their calls. In some instances, Defendants’
customer service personnel even hang up on consumers. Defendants routinely fail to
refund consumers’ money.

Defendants typically begin to debit consumers’ bank accounts and charge consumers’
credit cards for the discount health plan around fifteen or more days after the initial sales
call. In numerous instances, Defendants cause charges for the health plan to be
transmitted to the bank accounts or credit card accounts of consumers who declined the
free trial offer. In numerous instances, Defendants also cause charges for the health plan
to be transmitted to the bank accounts or credit card accounts of consumers who accept
the free trial offer, but do not receive the membership card sufficiently in advance of the
debit or charge to use the trial period promised during the call. Defendants even cause

charges for the health plan to be transmitted to some consumers’ bank accounts or credit

card accounts after Defendants’ customer service personnel have told these consumers
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Consumers who attempt to call “‘customer service” to obtain a cancellation code to cancel
their purchase and prevent further debits are frequently unable to do so. Defendants’
customer service representatives frequently hang up on consumers who call to cancel.
Many consumers are transferred to answering machines or told that they will be called
back, but they are never called. Many consumers who succeed in reaching a customer
service representative have been told that they could not cancel.

VIOLATIONS OF SECTION 5 OF THE FTC ACT
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practices in or affecting commerce. Misrepresentations or omissions of material fact
constitute deceptive acts or practices prohibited by Section 5(a) of the FTC Act.
Moreover, under Section 5(n) of the FTC Act, an act or practice is “unfair” if it causes or
is likely to cause substantial injury to consumers that is not reasonably avoidable by

consumers and is not outweighed by countervailing benefits to consumers or to

28.

Deceptive Practices
COUNT ONE
In numerous instances, in connection with the marketing of MasterCards and related
“free” items, Defendants have represented, expressly or by implication, that, after
consumers pay Defendants a fee:
A. consumers are guaranteed to receive a MasterCard;

B. consumers will receive, at no charge, additional specified products or services;
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C. consumers will receive, at no charge, additional specified products or services that

can be used in the manner represented by Defendants, for example, Defendants

money by activating the cards;
29.  In truth and in fact, in numerous instances in which Defendants have made the

representations above:

A. consumers do not receive a MasterCard;
B. consumers do not receive additional specified products or services; or
C. consumers do not receive additional specified products or services that can be

used in the manner represented by Defendants, for example, in certain
instances, money is not pre-loaded onto the cards and consumers cannot
activate the cards.

30.  Therefore, the representations set forth in Paragraph 28 are false and misleading and

constitute deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15

COUNT TWO
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they may cancel their plan membership;

B. That consumers will timely receive the membership card and other information
necessary to determine, prior to the expiration of the free trial period, whether
they wish to keep or cancel membership in the plan;

C. That consumers can cancel their plan membership by calling to cancel and
obtaining a cancellation number as instructed by Defendants;

D. That consumers will not be charged for the plan if consumers decline or timely
cancel the plan as instructed by Defendants; and

E. That consumers whose plan memberships are not cancelled will be charged an

initial fee and then a fee each month thereafter.

In truth and in fact, in numerous instances in which Defendants have made the
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34.

the plan as instructed by Defendants; or
E. Consumers whose plan memberships are not cancelled are charged multiple
monthly fees in a single month.
Therefore, the representations set forth in Paragraph 31 are false and misleading and
constitute deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15
U.S.C. § 45(a).
Unfair Practices

COUNT THREE

In numerous instances, in connection with the marketing of a free trial membership in the

Amerikhealth discount health plan, Defendants have caused consumers’ bank accounts to
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discount health plan;
B. Prior to receipt by the consumers of the membership card authorizing consumers
to use the plan;
C. After consumers have asked to cancel the purchase of the plan; or
D. After Defendants denied consumers the ability to cancel the plan
through the customer service number provided by Defendants.
Defendants’ practices set forth in Paragraph 34 caused or are likely to cause substantial
injury to consumers that is not reasonably avoidable by consumers and is not outweighed
by countervailing benefits to consumers or competition.

Therefore, Defendants’ practices as alleged in Paragraph 34 constitute unfair practices in
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violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).
THE FTC’S TELEMARKETING SALES RULE

37. In 1994, Congress directed the FTC to prescribe rules prohibiting abusive and deceptive
telemarketing acts or practices pursuant to the Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 6101-
6108. On August 16, 1995, the FTC promulgated the TSR, 16 C.F.R. Part 310, which
became effective on December 31, 1995. On January 29, 2003, the FTC amended the
TSR by issuing a Statement of Basis and Purpose and the final amended TSR. 68 Fed.
Reg. 4580, 4669. Except for specific provisions not relevant to this action, the amended
TSR became effective March 31, 2003.

38. Since December 31, 1995, except for certain specified types of transactions, the TSR has




material aspect of a negative option feature including, but not limited to, that the
customer’s account will be charged unless the customer takes an affirmative action to
avoid the charge(s), the date(s) the charge(s) will be submitted for payment, and the
specific steps the customer must take to avoid the charge(s). 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(2)(ix)

(2003).









obtaining a cancellation number as instructed by Defendants;
D. That consumers will not be charged for the plan if consumers decline or timely

cancel the plan as instructed by Defendants: and
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representations above:
A. Consumers are not provided a free trial period at any time during which they may
cancel their plan membership;

R Nefendants danat simelv send and consumers donof timelv receive the plan
members—p card and other necessarv plan information so that orior to exniration







billing information to be submitted for payment, directly or indirectly, using
preacquired account information, without obtaining from consumers the last four
(4) digits of consumers’ account numbers to be charged or obtaining from
consumers their express agreement to be charged for the goods or services and to
be charged using the account number for which the last four (4) digits were
provided.

55. Defendants have thereby violated Sections 310.4(a)(6)(1)(A) and (B) and 310.3(b) of the

TSR. 16 C.F.R. §§ 310.4(a)(6)(i1)(A) and (B) and 310.3(b).

THE ELECTRONIC FUND TRANSFER ACT AND REGULATION E

56. Section 907(a) of the EFTA, 15 U.S.C. § 1693e(a), provides that a *“preauthorized

electronic fund transfer from a consumer’s account mav be authorized bv the consumer. |
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60.
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fund transfers from their accounts, thereby violating Section 907(a) of the EFTA, 15
U.S.C. § 1693e(a); and Section 205.10(b) of Regulation E, 12 C.F.R. § 205.10(b).
Pursuant to the EFTA, 15 U.S.C. § 16930(c), every violation of the EFTA and Regulation
E constitutes a violation of the FTC Act.

By engaging in violations of the EFTA and Regulation E as alleged in Paragraph 58
above, Defendants have violated the FTC Act.

CONSUMER INJURY

Consumers throughout the United States have suffered and continue to suffer substantial
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been unjustly enriched as a result of their unlawful acts or practices. Absent injunctive
relief by this Court, Defendants are likely to continue to injure consumers, reap unjust
enrichment, and harm the public.

THIS COURT’S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF

Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), empowers this Court to grant injunctive




the Telemarketing Sales Rule, including the rescission of contracts and restitution, and
disgorgement of ill-gotten gains.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff FTC, pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 19 of the FTC Act, 15

U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b, and Section 6(b) of the Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. § 6105(b) and the
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(a) Award plaintiff such temporary and preliminary injunctive and ancillary relief as

may be necessary to avert the likelihood of consumer injury during the pendency of this action

and to preserve the possibility of effective final relief, including, but not limited to, temporary

and preliminary injunctions and an order freezing assets;
(b) Permanently enjoin and restrain Defendants from engaging or assisting others in

engaging in violations of the FTC Act, the TSR, the EFTA, and Regulation E. ‘
(c) Award such equitable relief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to |

consumers resulting from Defendants’ violations of Sections 5(a) and 19 of the FTC Act, the

TSR, the EFTA, and Regulation E, including but not limited to, rescission of contracts and ‘




Attorneys
Division of Enforcement
Bureau of Consumer Protection
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(202) 326-2237 (Floyd telephone)
atloyd@ftc.gov (Floyd e-mail)
(202) 326-2842 (Bak telephone)
pbak @fic.gov (Bak e-mail)

(202) 326- 2559 (facsimile)

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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